ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVMM TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
April 25, 2003
7:13 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Hawker, Co-Chair
Representative JimWitaker, Co-Chair
Representative Cheryll Heinze
Representative Vic Kohring

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch
Representative Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representative Carl Mses

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representati ve Dan Ogg
Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 26

Proposi ng anendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to and limting appropriations from and inflation
proofing the Al aska permanent fund by establishing a percent of
mar ket val ue spending limt.

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 26

SHORT TI TLE: CONST. AM  PF APPROPS/ | NFLATI ON- PROCFI NG
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST COF LEG BUDGET & AUDI T BY

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

04/ 17/ 03 1025 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 17/ 03 1025 (H VWM JUD, FIN

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -1- April 25, 2003



04/ 17/ 03 1025 (H REFERRED TO WAYS & MEANS

04/ 22/ 03 (H) WM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519

04/ 22/ 03 (H Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( V&M

04/ 24/ 03 (H WeM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519

04/ 24/ 03 (H) Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( &M

04/ 25/ 03 (H WeM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519

W TNESS REG STER

MARC LANGLAND, Chair, President, and CEO

Nor t hri m Bank;

former trustee

Al aska Per manent Fund Cor poration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 26 and answered
questions fromthe nenbers.

ROBERT BARTHOLOVEW Chief Operating Oficer

Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 26 and answered
guestions fromthe nenbers.

RON LORENSEN, Attorney at Law

Si mpson, Tillinghast, Sorensen, and Longenbaugh

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As counsel to the Al aska Permanent Fund
Corporation, testified in support of HIR 26 and answered
questions fromthe nenbers.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-14, SIDE A
Number 0001

COCHAIR JIM WH TAKER cal |l ed the House Special Conmmttee on \Ways
and Means neeting to order at 7:13 a.m Representatives Hawker,
VWi t aker, Heinze, Kohring, Wyhrauch, WIson, Guenberg, and
Moses were present at the <call to order. Representati ve
Rokeber g arrived as t he neeting was in pr ogr ess

Representati ves Ogg, Seaton, and Samuels were al so present.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 2- April 25, 2003



HIR 26- CONST. AM PF APPROPS/ | NFLATI ON- PROOFI NG

Number 0157

CO CHAIR WHI TAKER announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 26 Proposing anmendnents to
the Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to and limting
appropriations from and inflation proofing the Al aska permanent
fund by establishing a percent of market value spending limt.

Number 0209

MARC LANGLAND, Chair, President, and CEO, Northrim Bank; forner
trustee, Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation, testified in support
of HIR 26 and answered questions from the nenbers. He told the
menbers that because of his experience with the Al aska Permanent
Fund Corporation [Board of Trustees], he would |ike to conmmrent
on the endowrent process and |let nenbers know that he favors
noving in that direction. In [noving toward an endowrent
process] there will be a steady flow of cash and a predictable
flow of revenues to the state versus the current system he
expl ai ned. He pointed out that this would take politics out of
process of managing the fund and renove the tenptation on the
part of the legislature to wuse inflation-proofing dollars
instead of putting the noney back into the fund. M. Langl and
noted that when he was a trustee there was not the sanme pressure
on the fund as there is now with respect to producing earnings.
He explained that there is an opportunity under the current
system for decisions to be made that would create nore or |ess
cash earnings for the fund such as taking appreciation and
assets as a profit to create new cash or take | osses. He said
sonetinmes those decisions could be influenced by politics and
pressures to influence the flow of cash. Although he said he is
not sure that has ever happened, it could occur. The
[ endownent] approach would allow trustees to provide better
managenent of the assets of the fund by making decisions based
on long-term proper asset allocation and [base] decisions on
whether to take profits from an index fund or not, wthout the
influence of political pressure to create cash. M. Langl and
recalled that during the last election he heard a nunber of
peopl e discuss the notion of not inflation-proofing the fund,
and using that cash to close the budget gap; thereby, not
i npacting the dividend. The aforenentioned is a good exanple of
how, in times of stress, politics could influence the overall
integrity of the fund by not inflation-proofing it.

Nunmber 0636

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 3- April 25, 2003



MR. LANGLAND said that in the future the pressure to create
revenues and use earnings fromthe fund to fill the [budget] gap
will be great. He reiterated that the endownent idea would
produce a predictable flow of cash no matter what happens in a
nor e vol atil e st ock mar ket and unpr edi ctabl e econoni ¢

situations. The endownent would also provide the legislature
with better know edge on how to nmnage the state's fiscal
i ssues, he said. He asked the nenbers to consider that the
state is facing very unpredictable revenue sources from the
price of oil. In managing a business it is inportant to
mtigate the volatility of the revenue stream he explained.
Under the current system oil revenues are unpredictable and

volatile and financial markets are also unpredictable and
vol atile; however, wth an endownent nethod at |east one-half of
the revenue stream for the state will be off of the volatile
list and nake [the fund] nore predictable. M. Langl and
summarized his comments by saying that from the standpoint of
managi ng government revenues and being able to use those funds
for governnent, it is in the [best interest] of the state and
its citizens to understand what the permanent fund can produce
on a regular basis when the fund is not influenced by political
pressure. M. Langland urged nenbers to pass HIR 26.

Number 0908

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Langland if he read M ke
Doogan's colum where he criticized this approach [to nanagi ng
the fund].

MR. LANGLAND replied that he does not read [M.] Doogan's
col um.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG commented that M. Doogan raised sone
interesting issues with respect to this [nmethod of managenent].
One issue he raised is the assunption that there will be an 8
percent return. M. Doogan asked what wll happen if there is
not that rate of return, since the fund is not earning 8 percent
NOWw. Representative G uenberg asked M. Langland to respond to
M . Doogan's question.

Number 1043
MR. LANGLAND replied that in |looking at the permanent fund it is
inportant to look at it as a long-term asset. The statistical

data on a long-termbasis [reflects that] an 8 percent return is
a reasonable expectation through various economc cycles wth

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -4- April 25, 2003



the proper asset allocation of the fund. Although there will be
times when real returns are less than 8 percent, there will also
be times that the return will be nore than that. M. Langl and
pointed out that it is very difficult to predict the future and
that is why it is very inportant to think prospectively.
Unfortunately, the political arena does not |ook at the |ong
term and [M. Doogan's] coment is a very good exanple of why
t he endowrent and payout fornula is so inportant.

CO CHAIR WH TAKER told the nenbers that he does not want [M.
Doogan's] colum to be the subject matter of the committee's
di scussi on.

Number 1302

CO CHAIR HAWKER commrented that across [the state] there are
criticisne [voiced] with respect to making changes [to the

per mnent fund]. There is [a perception] that the current
structure of permanent fund is absolutely the best and only
structure in which it should be organized. He asked M.

Langl and what years he served on the Al aska Pernmanent Fund Board
of Trustees.

MR. LANGLAND replied that he served from 1986 through 1990. The
1990's were very big years and the real rate of return was about
4 percent.

CO CHAIR HAWKER asked if the trustees were |ooking at a change
in the nethodol ogy at that tine.

MR. LANGLAND replied that the biggest issue he recalls was the
requi renent that dividend calculations were the first call on
the earnings versus inflation-proofing. The trustees tried to
get the legislature to look at switching that order, although
they were not able to achieve it. Another inportant issue that
was being di scussed was the change from 50 percent to 25 percent
on new oil revenues. M. Langland pointed out that there has
been a change in the definitions in accounting principles which
makes the current system nore conplicated. He commented that at
that tinme [1986-1990] there was no political pressure to use
earnings fromthe fund to cl ose the budget gap.

Number 1550

CO CHAIR HAWKER asked if M. Langland believes the legislature
is being too reactive in considering this as a tool 1in
addressing the fiscal gap. He asked if, as a financial

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 5- April 25, 2003



prof essional and econom st, this [change] would nake sense to
M. Langland if he were still a trustee on the board.

MR. LANGLAND replied that he absolutely would support [HIR 26].
He explained that when he was on the board there was a |ot of
i ndex fund managenent instead of individual managers for the
stock portfolio. The markets were good then and the fund
accunul ated hundreds of mllions of dollars in appreciated stock
val ues. M. Langland told the nenbers that the [board] had the
opportunity to directly influence the size of the dividend over
time by taking the profits and turning them into cash which
woul d have created |larger payouts of dividends. Tr emendous
political pressure could have resulted in influenced decisions,
he conment ed. M. Langland told the nenbers that [the fund]
took profits for the right reason and it had nothing to do with
di vidends. As the appointnments of the trustees are politicized,
it is a big concern that they [may] feel pressure [to increase]
earnings when there is the opportunity to change how nuch cash
flows into the state coffers for dividends or operations [of

state governnent]. At the time he was a trustee, M. Langl and
said he did not like it and believed it would be a major problem
in future. He reiterated that he does not believe the
| egi slature is being over reactive because this nethod is a very
sound, |ong-range plan. The prudence of this concept is
defensible and understandable to both institutional investors

t hroughout the country and recipients of cash that flows out of
different types of endowrents, he said.

Nunber 1846

CO CHAIR HAWKER referred to M. Langland's earlier comments on
the inportance of maintaining a nmechanismto inflation-proof the
fund. He asked if he would clarify his conclusion that the
proposed method would institutionalize inflation-proofing of the
fund. Wuld it in fact, result in the preservation of capital
or does the ultinmate nechanism result in an erosion of capital
he asked.

MR. LANGLAND replied that there is no absolute answer to that
guesti on. It all depends on the tinme [period in which] the
mar ket is |ooked at, and what the payout fornula percentage is.
He recalled a study that was done on inflation-proofing while he
was on the board. The trustees |ooked at every nethod, and
there was no concl usi on about what [would be the] absolute right
way to protect the principal of +the fund from inflation.
Because there is no absolute answer, he suggested | ooking at how
nost people address this issue. The endownent nethod is

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 6- April 25, 2003



certainly a proven way that addresses the issues, although it is
not perfect and does not totally inflation-proof the fund at any
given tinme because it depends on the payout percentage that is
used. If taking a conservative [approach], the payout should be
less than 5 [percent]. If there is a desire to take an
aggressive approach, then the payout would be nore than 5
[ percent], he said. The current system is totally subjective
because no one has any idea what real inflation is and
inflation-proofing is totally subject to the discretion of
| egi sl ature, which creates nore risk to the principal in the
long run. However, the endownent theory, provi ded the
| egi sl ature does not get carried away wth the payout
percentage, [would provide stability]. M. Langland stated that
a 5 percent [payout] is about right or a little above the
average [of other endownent payouts].

Number 2159

CO CHAIR HAWKER noted that M. Langland' s perspective on the 5
percent payout factor as the key to the success of this nodel is
an issue he would like to discuss further. It is inportant that
capital is preserved and not eroded, he said. Co- Chair Hawker
asked for M. Langland's opinion on the 5 percent payout factor

and the [constitutional] amendnent. For the record he stated
that [HIR 26] has |anguage that states the payout would not
exceed 5 percent, rather than a definitive 5 percent. Co- Chai r

Hawker enphasi zed that he believes it is inportant to ensure the
| ong-term val ue of the fund.

Number 2310

MR. LANGLAND replied that statistical information is readily
available on the long-term average of inflation. Many of the
studies that he has seen say inflation has been around 3.1
percent since about 1926, and real returns are generally in the
3 to 4 percent range. If earnings are in the 7 to 8 percent
range on an average basis, the fund would be in good shape, he
sai d. M. Langland explained that on a long-term basis stocks
general ly produce about a 9 percent return, and bonds [produce]
about a 3.5 to 4.5 percent [return]. He comented that a 5
percent payout over the long term is probably a very good
nunber, but he enphasized that he would not be in favor of any
nunber in excess of 5 percent. On a short-term basis, 5 percent
will probably be excessive, but he stressed the inportance of
structuring this [endowrent] as a long-term concept. M.
Langl and conmmented that no one can predict wth any degree of
certainty, beyond a couple of years, [what earnings wll be].

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -7- April 25, 2003



For exanple, stocks did not produce dividends in the 1990s;
however, currently there is pressure for stocks to produce
di vi dends. On a historical basis stocks have returned 4 to 5
percent over the long term in dividends, he said. There is a
maj or shift right now in how income conmes in stocks versus the
i nportance of appreciation in value in the 1990s.

MR. LANGLAND pointed out that there are many issues that are
inportant in the managenent of the fund. It is extrenely
inportant that a trustee can focus on the long term when neking
[investnent] decisions [because the inpact of those choices]
will allow for the proper allocation of assets to protect the
fund. M. Langland summarized his comrents by saying that
stability is very inportant when managing funds like this. He
stated that the process currently in place creates instability,
whi ch increases risk, both in asset allocation and ultimtely in
inflation.

Nunmber 2698

CO CHAIR HAWKER commented that M. Langland touched on capital
erosion; however, the fund has had years when there have been
earnings in excess of the 5 percent |Ievel. He asked M.
Langland if he is confortable that this mechani sm woul d keep the
earnings "off the table"” in good years.

MR.  LANGLAND responded that he 1is confortable wth this
| egi sl ati on because, as an endownent, it provides that there
would only be a 5 percent payout of the current narket value of
the fund. Asset allocations are noved around depending on a | ot
of different factors, he said, and that is the key to producing
revenues that are less volatile in the long term The
af orenentioned is one of the nost inportant parts to consider in
how this piece of legislation [could benefit the] nmanagenent of
the fund. M. Langland stated that he could not over-enphasize
how i nmportant that is because the way volatility is reduced in a
fund is through the proper allocation of those assets. That is
the nost critical and positive elenment for the managenent of the

fund and preservation of capital. He explained that allocation
of assets refers to the different kinds of stocks in the
portfolio, [how nuch is invested] in bonds, how nmuch [is

invested] in international funds, and how much in real estate,
et cetera.

Nunber 2926

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 8- April 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ~ WEYHRAUCH asked him if his reference to
preservation of capital actually neant to protect the fund from
inflation and ensure that the real value of the permanent fund
IS preserved.

MR. LANGLAND replied that is the correct interpretation
Number 3011

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if M. Langland, as a banker and
former trustee of the fund, believes this anmendnent [HIR 26]
woul d provide certainty of dividend cal cul ations.

MR. LANGLAND prefaced his coments by saying that he has a
prejudi ce [concerning dividends]. He explained that he does not
| ook at the fund and the way it is managed with any [thought] to
di vi dends. He acknow edged that politically that does not go
over well; however, he said he does not believe that [dividends]
should be the focus. The focus should be on a predictable
revenue stream that the legislature can use for whatever purpose
is deened necessary. He opined that [dividends] wll not be an
issue for very |long because he believes it will be necessary to
use the noney for state governnent. He enphasized that he woul d
not look at this resolution [based] on how it may or nay not
af fect dividends and pointed out that this resolution wuld give
a nore predictable annual source of cash and that could be
interpreted to help the dividend.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH highlighted that the resolution talks
about protecting the fund from inflation and ensuring the real
val ue of the permanent fund. He asked how M. Langl and defines
real val ue.

Nunber 3211

MR. LANGLAND comrented that it is a loose term He said he
relates it to inflation in the sense of real value and the
ability to properly allocate the assets of the fund to protect
and reduce the volatility of the fund over the long term He
stated that he does not believe there is any way anyone can say
that there is a fornmula or process that will absolutely protect
the real value of the fund or real principal of the fund. M.
Langl and said that he believes this piece of legislation would
clear up a lot of these definitions and elimnate a lot of the
m sconceptions and msinterpretations of ternmns. He urged the
menbers to focus on what this legislation does or does not do
for the preservation [of the fund].

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 9- April 25, 2003



Number 3404

REPRESENTATI VE  WEYHRAUCH commented that in public foruns

guestions such as these conme up. He said he appreciates M.
Langland's insight, as it wll assist him in intelligently
answering questions from the public. Representative Wyhrauch

surm sed that M. Langland views this resolution as a provision
to inprove the admnistration of the fund and thus inproves the
flow of permanent fund earnings to the state general fund. He
asked if that is an accurate summary [of his views].

MR. LANGLAND replied that he is exactly right.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH went on to say that this legislation
would help the legislature to provide appropriations for
permanent fund dividends, if the legislature nmakes that policy
choice, and to help close fiscal gap.

MR. LANGLAND responded that is correct.
Nunber 3516

CO CHAI R WHI TAKER noted that as a banker M. Langland has a huge
stake in the econony. He asked what w Il happen in the |arger
economc picture if the |egislature does not take action such as
that prescribed by HIR 26.

MR. LANGLAND explained that he has been active in trying to
persuade the legislature and the admnistration to face up to
the fiscal crisis and deal wth it earlier rather than |ater
He said the argunent that he puts forth is there would be |ess
i npact on the econony if action is taken sooner to ease into a
transition fromno responsibility on the part of citizens to one
in which citizens gradually becone responsibile for funding
state governnent. He said he is wunsure whether that action
would include using part of the earnings and |owering the
dividends [to fund] state governnent or sone sort of tax system
in which individuals would participate.

MR. LANGLAND expressed concern that the legislature mght wait
until [the state] runs out of noney in the Constitutional Budget
Reserve Fund (CBR) and then take dividends totally off the table
and/ or inpose very large taxes. He said in either of those
[scenarios] there will be a negative inpact on the econony.
There is no way that the state can get through this knot hole
wi thout having a negative inpact on the state's econony.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -10- April 25, 2003



However, how serious that inpact wll be depends on the
| egi slature's approach to closing the [fiscal] gap, which wll
be closed because constitutionally the legislature is required
to balance the budget. One argunent he opposes is to take
inflation-proofing dollars and use those [funds to bal ance the
budget] . In this case the dividend would still be paid out.
The danger he sees [with the legislature failing to] close the
gap is that it wll affect people comng into the state or
peopl e already here who are trying to expand their businesses.
For exanple, if a businessperson comng into Al aska knows that
there is a billion dollar [fiscal] gap, it would be clear that
there will be taxes and it will have an inpact in sone way. M.
Langl and cautioned that this is a dangerous situation that is
easy to keep putting off because the legislature has the cash to
deal with the deficit, but it is a very dangerous process
economi cal ly. Phasing in [a nmethod of closing the budget gap]
would provide a snpother transition with less inpact on the
econony. He urged the nenbers to let citizens make adjustnent
personal | y. M. Langland summarized his conmments by saying he
understands the political realities that the nenbers nust face,
but | eadership [should not] take polls, and going to the vote of
the people is not a very practical way to close the [fiscal]

gap.
Number 4046

CO CHAIR WH TAKER asked if the budget is not balanced, where
will that path lead us. He surmsed that [if the budget is not

bal anced] economc growh will be stifled and in conbination
with the shock or reality that nust be faced when the CBR is
gone [will lead the state to an econom c crisis].

MR. LANGLAND agreed that is the path [the state] is on. He said
he is not very hopeful that the admnistration and the
| egislature wll provide a transition [in addressing this
probl em . Politically it will be necessary to do a conbination
of major reductions in the permanent fund [dividends] and have
taxes to fill the gap. M. Langland comented that a
conbination of these two steps would be less of an inpact on
each citizen, although there will be sone inpact to the econony.
He enphasized that he does not see these steps as having a
devastating inpact at all. In sonme cases, he said he believes
it will be positive for the state to have nore participation in
government [from its citizens]. M. Langl and conmented that he
does not see this as a big negative. Al though there w il be
issues that will have to be worked thorough, Al aska has a strong
enough econonmy to weather this [storn] wthout any ngjor

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -11- April 25, 2003



di sruptions. However, he cautioned that it may be necessary to
offer sone help on the social side to bridge the gap. Still,
M. Langland said he believes this is very nanageable and he is
optimstic.

Nunber 4342

CO CHAI R HAWKER said that this constitutional anmendnent [HIR 26]
envisions nerging the earnings reserve and the principal of the
Al aska permanent fund. Most politicians and econonm sts have
conditioned people to be very protective of the corpus of the
fund. He asked M. Langland if he believes it is appropriate to
nerge these two aspects of the fund. In doing this will the
state end up with a result that is consistent with preserving
the long-term val ue of the fund, he asked.

MR. LANGLAND replied the he thinks it is [appropriate]. He
expl ained that the way the fund works now there is a need for a
depository for those tines when there is nore cash available
than what the fornmula needs. The reserve account has been used
to pull off cash in those years when the fornmula does not work

and it is short of cash. Once the legislature goes to the
payout fornula, there will be no need for the reserve account;
it goes away. He said he thinks, from a prudent standpoint,

that nerging the reserve account into the principal of the fund,
rather than taking it off the table and using it for other
government al purposes, would be viewed in a nore positive |ight
politically; philosophically it is the prudent thing to do.

Nunmber 4554

COCHAIR WH TAKER asked if this wuld facilitate asset
managenment and the inplenentation of those points addressed
earlier which would mtigate the volatility of the fund.

MR. LANGLAND replied that it woul d.

TAPE 03-14, SIDE B

Nunmber 4526

CO CHAI R HAWKER noved to adopt the proposed committee substitute
(CS for HIR 26, Version 23-LS1006\H, Cook, 4/23/03, as the

wor ki ng docunment. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

CO CHAIR HAWKER noted a [typographical] error on page 2: t he
reference to Version A should actually be to Version H.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -12- April 25, 2003



Nunmber 4437

RON LORENSEN, Attorney at Law, Sinpson, Tillinghast, Sorensen,
and Longenbaugh, speaking as outside counsel to the Al aska
Per manent Fund Corporation, testified in support of HIR 26 and
answered questions fromthe nenbers.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked about the [|anguage on page 2,
line 2, Section 2(b), which says, "Mney should not be
appropriated from the pernmanent fund." He asked why the words
"should not" were used, instead of "will not."

MR. LORENSEN explained that the <change in the draft was
suggested by Tanmara Cook, Director, Legal and Research Services.
He recalled that M. Cook was concerned that as drafted and
presented in the original version of HIR 26, the first and
second sentences  of subsection (b) setup separate and
i ndependent standards for appropriations from the permanent
fund. She was concerned that mght create sonme confusion and
| egal issues in the future. Therefore, M. Cook drafted the
first sentence basically as a predicate statenent to the second
[ sentence], he said. M. Lorensen noted that while he has not
talked to Ms. Cook directly, that is his understanding of the
change and it nmakes sense to him when he read it in that
cont ext .

Nunmber 4247

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH agreed that it does nmakes sense,
especially since the second sentence begins wth the word
"therefore." Representative Wyhrauch said that he had never
seen a sentence in the constitution start wth the word
"therefore" which [makes] it alnbst a statenent of policy or
i ntent.

MR. LORENSEN reiterated that Ms. Cook is, in this case, using
the first sentence as a predicate or policy statenent, as to the
goal of limtations of payouts and the word "therefore” is used
as the transition into the limtation | anguage.

Number 4136
REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH commented that changing the word

"should" to the word "will" would renpve the need for the use of
the word "therefore".

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -13- April 25, 2003



MR. LORENSEN asked the nenbers to conpare the original version
of HIR 26. He pointed out that it said "nobney may not be
appropriated” in the first sentence so the word "therefore" was
not in the second sentence.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked about the [|anguage on page 2,
lines 6-7, where it says "the first five of the six fiscal
years" and inquired as to the significance of the 5-year period.
He asked if M. Lorensen would clarify if this neant any five of
the preceding six years, or the last five of six years. Wat is
t he purpose of selecting five years, he asked.

MR. LORENSEN said that what this calls for is a one-year |o0k
back provi sion. What this neans is when |ooking back to
determ ne the 5-year period the current fiscal year is omtted.
In other words if the legislature is nmaking an appropriation for
this year, FY 04, it would nean that FY 03 is not |ooked at, but
that the five years that ended with FY 02 woul d be included. He
explained that this is a sinpler way of saying that than the
attorney's | anguage. For exanple, if appropriating funds for FY
04, the legislature would look at the six years before that
year, but only use the first five of those years. This woul d
ensure certainty at the tine of nmaking the appropriation because
the | ast year used as part of the cal culati on would be FY 02.

Number 4000

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH turned to when the trustees are
determning if there should be a payout on June 30th and
inquired as to the tinmeframe being used. Is it the close of
business at 5:00 p.m [Eastern Standard Tinme] or mdnight Al aska
Ti me?

MR. LORENSEN replied that he believes it is the end of the
busi ness day for financial purposes which is 5:00 p.m, New York
tinme.

ROBERT BARTHOLOVEW Chief Operating Oficer, Al aska Permanent
Fund Corporation, testified in support of HIR 26 and answered
guestions from the nenbers. He told the nmenbers historically
when the permanent fund and the custodi an bank, the Bank of New
York, determne the fund value of a day they use the |ast
closing of the mrkets around the world. When maki ng
cal culations on June 30th, the fund will find the last closing
value fromall the stock markets all around the world were. For
exanple, if in the mddle of evening on June 30th the stock
mar ket in Tokyo is opening, the fund does not use an opening or

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -14- April 25, 2003



intra-day value in determ ning the value of the fund. It would
be the last closing day that would be used for all of those
different markets, he reiterated.

Nunmber 3748

REPRESENTATI VE ~ WEYHRAUCH asked if the funds would be
appropriated to the general fund under this schene.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW responded that the funds are subject to
| egi slative appropriation so there is no direction in the
constitution as to where those appropriations would go.

VR, BARTHOLOMVEW in response to Representative Wyhrauch
clarified that the current constitutional provision says incone
from the permanent fund shall be deposited in the general fund

unl ess otherwi se provided by I|aw However, since 1982 the
statutes have provided that all incone from the permanent fund
shall be deposited in the permanent fund. So the funds have

been retained in the permanent fund since 1982 and then
appropriations have conme from the earnings reserve [account] of
t he permanent fund and have gone to the dividend fund, which is
a subfund of the general fund. In further response to
Representative Wyhrauch, M. Bartholonew confirned that the
earnings reserve account and the earnings reserve fund are the
sane thing.

Nunber 3624

COCHAIR HAWKER noted that if this constitutional anmendnent
should pass the legislature, it would be necessary to address
the existing statute which would be inconpatible wth the
mechanism wthin the constitution. It would require the
| egislature to |look for broader enabling statutes to define or
delineate what should be done with those distributions should
t hey be nade, he said.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW said the board's policy resolution, which is in
the menbers' packets, recommends that the existing statutes be
updated to work better with a payout of market value nethod.
The legislature could |eave the existing statutes, but it does
not work very well. The existing statutes provide for a
calculation of what is available for appropriation using a
realized incone approach, and [these statutes] do not direct
where the noney goes, he explained. It is the understandiing of
the board that there will be statutory |anguage that inplenents

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -15- April 25, 2003



constitutional provisions as things work now M . Bart hol onew
told the nenbers that the board s recomendation and policy
statenent is that the legislature |look at the statutes that
determne what is available and wite those [statutes] to work
better with the payout of market val ue [nethod].

Nunmber 3559

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said that the |anguage in [sub]section
(b) of this anendnent indicates that the governnment of the State
of Alaska has to ensure that the real value of the permanent
fund is preserved over tinme. He asked if that is a correct. In
response to M. Bart hol omew s affirmative response,
Representative Weyhrauch asked if this requires the |legislature
to ensure the value of the permanent fund reserved over tine.
The legislature could not appropriate out funds that would drain
the permanent fund because that would be in violation of the
constitution. He asked if M. Bartholomew agrees wth his
interpretation of the |anguage.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW agreed that is his understanding of the intent
| anguage. The language is to ensure the focus is on the |ong-
term period, and then over that long-term period, the policy
statenent is to preserve the real value of the permanent fund.
The board of trustees or legislative nenbers use whatever tools
available to themto nake a statenent or an analysis to |look to
the preservation of the value of the fund, he said.

Nunber 3341

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH commented that when the pernmanent fund
was established and the statutory schenme was setup in 1982, the
intent was to set aside noney for governnent and keep
politicians honest by investing the public through permanent
fund divi dends. This ensured that the public [had a] invested
[interest] in the account and the |egislature knew the people

woul d be invested. There was also the intent that the funds
woul d eventually be there for a rainy day when Al aska ran out of
oi | revenues, and therefore the legislature ~could fund

government when Al aska did not have a huge revenue stream He
asked M. Bartholonew if that is his basic understanding of the
per manent fund's origin.

Nunber 3257

MR. BARTHOLOVEW responded that he would go back a bit further
and say that there were three mmjor steps that led to the

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -16- April 25, 2003



current situation with the permanent fund. First, there was a
constitutional anmendment in 1976 that asked the citizens of the
State of Alaska to set aside mineral wealth, which historically
has been oil wealth. So step one had no conception of a
di vidend or what would be done with the earnings. [ The 1976
constitutional anmendnent] said that the state would set aside
earnings that are not needed or oil wealth that was not needed.
The earnings from that oil wealth would be deposited into the

general fund. He pointed out that in 1976 the earnings were
fairly small, but those earnings were deposited into the general
fund. In 1980, after a couple of years of debate and
di scussion, the dividend program canme into existence. In 1982,
[the constitution] was anmended and that is the statutory schene
that is used today. M. Bartholonmew turned to the legislative
history of the permanent fund. Governor Hamond was the
governor at the tinme. The statutes in place since 1982 gave a
better all ocated 50 percent of what is available for

appropriation annually to the dividend program M. Barthol onew
noted that inflation-proofing has been in the statutes since
1982, and [there is no nention] about what to do with the funds
avai lable after the dividends have been paid and inflation-
proofing has occurred.

COCHAIR WHI TAKER noted for the record that Representative
Rokeberg had j oi ned the neeti ng.

Number 3039

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked M. Bartholomew if he believes
this [HIR 26] is a dramatic departure from the original intent
of the people, legislature, and the admnistration that setup
t he permanent fund.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW responded that the board of trustees does not
feel this is a major change; the permanent fund has changed and
mat ured. How the noney is invested has evol ved over the |ast 25
years, he commented. For exanple, the funds have evolved to be
100 percent invested in fixed incone or bonds that pay interest
income to the holder of the bonds whereas 20 years ago the
general direction was that these bonds were to be held to
maturity so there was not a lot of volatility. The legislature
crafted a statutory scheme that works well in the world of bonds
and fixed incone. As the permanent fund has matured and nore
| earned about the investnment industry and capital markets, the
| egi sl ature has granted the [Al aska Permanent Fund Corporati on]
through statutes the permssion to invest in US.  stocks,
international stocks, international fixed incone or bonds, and

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -17- April 25, 2003



real estate. How income is derived from those investnents has
evolved, it is not just an interest paynent, he explai ned. As
M. Langland testified earlier, the permanent fund now has
capital appreciation in real estate and stocks which were not an
issue with bonds, he said. The [board] characterizes this nore
as [addressing] the fund' s asset investnent strategy which has
mat ured; [however,] the rules that guide the permanent fund
regarding how to nmake use of the value have not evolved. The
board has been working for the last eight or nine years to
educate everyone so that a decision wll be made to bring the
rules up to speed and in a manner matching the fund s investnent
strategy. Oiginally, the intent was to set aside oil wealth
for some future period, and the decision as to whether the state
is in that future period or not is separate from how to manage
the fund. M. Bartholonmew told the nmenbers that this is purely
the board's recomrendation that the rules that help manage the
fund need to be inproved. He said he does not see that as a
dramatic change in what was trying to be done in 1982.

Nunber 2731

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that he always thought of the
concept of the fund as a permanent fund, so that the corpus
woul d be there permanently, but income from the fund could be
used. The anendnment to the constitution provides a theoretica
possibility that the corpus could itself be consuned, he said.
He asked if that is not a fundanmental change in the purpose of
t he fund.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW responded that he believes it is a different
perspecti ve. He asked the nenbers to |look at the policy
statenent [the board submtted]. He said the board has had a
lot of discussion on the issue of whether to renove the
di stinction between principal and incone and nove to where the

permanent fund is one account of noney. He referred to
Representative Wyhrauch's earlier question as to whether the
intent is still to preserve the corpus or principal [of the
fund] over tine. M. Bartholonew stated that he believes the
board would say it absolutely is the intent and objective to
continue to maintain the principal. He read the follow ng
sentence [from the Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation Board of
Trustees Resolution 03-05, page 3, lines 1-3], which addresses

the proposal to elimnate the distinction between principal and
income and the overall proposal of payout of narket val ue, which
read:

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 18- April 25, 2003



The Board believes that this approach effectively
bal ances the goal of providing for an annual
distribution from the Fund that is predictable and
limted with the long-term goal of protecting the real
value of contributions to the Fund. [ original
punct uati on provi ded]

MR. BARTHOLOMEW poi nted out that the board of trustees is trying
to determne the best way to protect the fund and deal wth
annual distributions. Sone believe that if there were a $22-$23
billion fund it could not nmake a distribution for a year or two
because the capital markets had taken the val ue bel ow princi pal

There are sonme dynam cs invol ved. One [dynam c] would be the
effect on the econony, which is not the primary concern of the
board; however, it is sonmething that is reviewed. There is also
a risk of what the public would feel if there is this fund that

is providing no distribution. It is possible that there could
be a nove that would say that if there is a fund that is not
doing anything for us let's just divvy it up. M. Barthol onew

clarified that the board is not predicting that would happen,
but that was part of the discussion and it is a risk. He told
the nenbers this is the standard nethod followed by major
endownents and trusts, which have the sane intent to preserve
the initial contributions so they will be there in perpetuity
while also providing a distribution. The board wants to bal ance
those goals and protect the fund with this proposal. It is
inportant to note, he said, that if capital markets change from
what has occurred over the last 75 years and the real return or
the return in excess of inflation were to be |less than 5 percent
over the long term the legislature would have to | ook at that
and decide to appropriate less than the nmaxinmum that s
avai |l abl e.

Nunmber 2308

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said that currently the |egislature never
knows wuntil the end of the session how nuch noney can be
di stri but ed. However, with the change in |anguage [on page 2,
lines 6-7] neans that the legislature will know in January how
much noney is available for distribution because the current
fiscal year is not included in that calculation. Thi s change
will nmake it nmuch easier for the legislature to deal with the
budget . Representative WIson asked M. Bartholomew if her

assurrpti ons are correct.

MR. LORENSEN replied that is correct.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -19- April 25, 2003



Nunber 2157

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked about the 5 year running average. He
poi nted out that the date is being set on June 30th, for each of
t hose years. How does that change from what is presently being
done, he asked. He also asked if there is nore flexibility in
determning a particular day that would be used for what the
mar ket val ue of the fund is.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW responded that the way it is now witten, the
permanent fund uses the end of the fiscal year, which is June
30th. This does not change anything unless the State of Al aska

decided to change its fiscal year end. In that case, the
anmendnent would lock in that date, which is different than [the
way it is done now. M. Barthol omew explained that from
permanent fund's perspective, the constitution wll now tell

them to use June 30th, but the State of Alaska could stil
decide to change its year-end date, which he said he believes is
a renote possibility. It does take away a little flexibility,
but it is not really sonething that would have been used, he
sai d.

Number 2008

REPRESENTATI VE OGG posed a situation in which the pernmanent fund
had the flexibility to |look at the market |ast year and see that
it was going down and determne a good day to end the fisca
year as long as it was before June 30. He asked if that kind of
flexibility existed | ast year.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW responded that there are bylaws and other
corporate docunents that currently say the permanent fund fisca
year [ends] on June 30. He told the nmenbers that he never heard
any discussion about wusing that tool to <change what s
available. It is not something that could have been done on the
short term he said. There are rules that require public notice
to change the byl aws. The notice nmust be at |east one neeting

ahead of tinme. It would take many nonths to effect a change, he
said. Theoretically, it is possible, but the fund has been set
on using that consistent fiscal year end. Furthernore, there

are contracts based on those dates. Therefore, nany things set
in notion that would make it very difficult to change the date
fromJune 30 without a very |l ong process.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG commented that there really was not nuch
flexibility.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 20- April 25, 2003



MR. BARTHOLOVEW agreed that there is very limted flexibility.
It would have taken two to three nonths to change the date and
the tinmeframes. Theoretically, there is sone [flexibility], but
for practical purposes there is not, he said.

Nunber 1745

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked if any other endownents [distribute
funds the way the permanent fund] does now.

MR. BARTHOLOMEW answered that 70-80 percent of the endowrents of
public funds that are out there use a concept based on tota
mar ket value of fund rather than realized inconme. The executive
director testified earlier this week that in his 25 years in the
i ndustry, he is not aware of any other funds that use the payout
formula that is currently used by the pernmanent fund. The
formula was witten specifically for the fund 20 years ago. He
told nenbers the anendnent is an accepted payout nethod,
however, the one currently used is unique to the permanent fund.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS recalled that M. Langland testified that
this nmethod is a commobn sense [approach] and that the crux of
the resolution was whether the |egislature picked 4 percent or 5
per cent. How did the trustees determne 5 percent [as the
payout], he asked.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW replied that the trustees |ooked at it in many
ways, but the primary driver of the 5 percent is that over tine
the board has [devel oped] a policy statenent [which strives for]
the real rate of return that they are trying to achieve

[through] investnment [allocations]. The [rate of return]
started out at 3 percent and has worked its way up to 4 and 5
per cent. He pointed out that for nany years the permanent fund

used asset allocations specifying the fund woul d have 55 percent
in equities, 37 percent into bonds, and 10 percent in real
estate. The fund works with a consultant who |ooks at the
capital markets, |ooks at the five-year projections, and runs a
cal cul ati on. That cal culation says, given how the fund has
allocated the assets the expected earnings over a five-year
period will be a 5 percent rate of return. M. Barthol onew said
sonme people questioned why there is a policy statenent that says
the earnings should be at l|east 4 percent, while an asset
allocation policy that [projects] 5 percent was adopted. The
response has been that it gives the fund sonme |eeway. The 5
percent payout statenent is an effort to make the policy
statenent consistent with the asset allocation policy the fund
has adopt ed. There has been a little bid of wuncertainty, he

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -21- April 25, 2003



said, because the statutes are general in saying the permanent
fund should maximze its return while protecting the principal
The professional markets have been used to conme up with that 5
percent [figure]. The 5 POW statenent [nmakes it clear] to the
board that there is nore than just its understanding of how
[ much] the permanent fund should be earning or how nmuch risk the
permanent fund should take. It would be a state policy, that is
boarder than the board of trustees, he remarked.

Nunber 1344

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS comented that the trustees have no
opinion on the legislature's appropriation of available funds
under the old system and would have no opinion under the new
system He asked if t hat is a correct assunpti on.
Representative Sanuels noted that yesterday there was testinony
that this anendnent to the constitution is really a raid on the
fund. In truth, the legislature could choose not to fund the
di vidend now or wunder the new system or fund it under either
system That issue does not change, he surm sed.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW responded that this anmendnent does not change
the legislature's ability to spend the earnings in any way they
deem appropri ate. This is not a change to the way funds are
currently appropriated, he said. However, inflation-proofing is
only done through appropriation by the legislature, so there is
the option to appropriate noney to inflation-proof or to protect
the real value of the fund. Under this proposal the fund woul d
prioritize inflation-proofing as the nunber one priority because
there is an effort to retain inflation-proofing in the fund,
cover the effects of inflation, and then provide a distribution,
he explained. So the anmendnent does change the priority of how
inflation-proofing is handled and that would no |onger be an
option [for the legislature] because the [fund] would be
automatically [inflation proofed].

MR. BARTHOLOMEW told the nenbers that the only problem the
trustees have had wth the distribution or payout of the
permanent fund is regarding [how to inprove its ability to
manage i nvestnments in long-term assets [which would be possi bl e]
if there were sone constraints or understanding of what the draw
woul d be. Over the last five years the legislature has had the
ability to take up to $6.5 billion out of the permanent fund at
any tinme, he pointed out. He recalled that there was di scussion
many years ago about taking a |large sum of the earnings reserve,
$4 billion, and setting up another fund for education or
gover nnment . It is a little bit wunnerving for the board of

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -22- April 25, 2003



trustees to say that they have adopted this long-term asset
al l ocation, and invested in assets that should only be invested
in if they will be held for five, seven, or eight years. The
[trustees] questioned whether they should be invested in those
ways. This proposal says that the fund needs a nore predictable
and limted distribution, so the board can better manage the

fund. He explained that with this anmendnment the board knows
what can be put into long-term assets that cannot be drawn out
except up to five percent per year. M . Barthol onew summari zed

that it is inportant that there be a nore stable and predictable
payout because it matches how the [trustees] have invested the
fund. The board of trustees' responsibility ends at this point
and they do not take a position on how the payouts are
di stri buted.

Number 0950

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if [5 percent] is the accepted
i ndustry standard of payout.

Number 0934

MR. BARTHOLOVEW responded that the nethod of payout based on
total market value is the nost wdely adopted nethod in
i ndustries or public funds that are established in the form of
endownents to protect the corpus [of a fund]. The percentage
[ of payout] varies, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if this nmethod is w dely adopted,
but not the generally accepted standard.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW responded that he did not nean to inply that
this is not generally accepted, it is. It is the nbst used
nmet hod and the industry [standard]. He clarified his statenent
by saying that the POW approach is generally accepted and an
i ndustry standard.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the 5 percent payout is
[general ly accepted and an industry standard].

MR. BARTHOLOVEW offerred to provide the nenbers with a chart
that shows how nmany funds are using a 5 percent [payout], how
many are using nore than 5 percent, and how many are using |ess
than 5 percent. There are fewer funds using 5 percent than are
using less than 5 percent.

Number 0735

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -23- April 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG comented that |ast week he requested
that the corporation prepare a nenorandum for the commttee on
the current cash situation as is related to the dividend and
allocation formula and also wth (indisc.) regarding the
potential attorney general opinion on the wunrealized portion.
He asked if the corporation was working on that request.

MR. BARTHOLOVEW replied that the request is being worked on in
two ways. The corporation will nake available to the commttee
the actual request that went to the attorney general's office
that explains what the different perspectives are that are being
revi enwed. The [corporation] wll also provide the conmttee
wi th the updated bal ance of the permanent fund that is available
for [appropriation] under the existing rules.

Nunmber 0638

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG told the conmittee he believes it is
inportant that the nenbers have tine to debate whether adoption
of this anmendnment will influence the appropriations investnent
strategy, and whether [the strategy] wll be nore conservative
or nore aggressive.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Lorensen to explain the
| anguage on page 2, Section 2, subsection (b). He asked if this
| anguage was used to explain to the public the intention of the
trustees in this anmendnent and reassure the public that the
[trustees] were not going to take their noney. He asked if
inserting this language, particularly in Version (H), wth
respect to real value is a prudent position for the state to

t ake. Representative Rokeberg added that in his opinion this
[ amendnent | appears to be constitutionally adopting the
inflation-proofing concept. He asked if that 1is a fair
st at enent .

MR. LORENSEN said, in response to the first question, that the
board's intent with the first sentence was to set out a policy
goal that the public would be aware of at the tine the
constitutional anendnent was being considered. He rem nded
menbers that the |anguage has been nodified somewhat due to Ms.
Cook's recommendation that the |anguage should read, "the nobney
shoul d not be appropriated". M. Lorensen told the nenbers he
does not believe the language 1is inappropriate for a
constitutional provision.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 24- April 25, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the trustees do not w sh the
| egislature to nmake a maxinmum draw from the fund if
circunstances are such that it would dimnish its real value
based on inflation-proofing and growh cal cul ati ons. He pointed
out that there is an inplicit statenent [in HIR 26] that says do
not [appropriate] up to 5 percent if the fund cannot afford it
under these conditions. Representati ve Rokeberg stated that
this is a concern and questioned if the trustees want to express
to the public that these are their instructions to the
| egi sl ature.

Nunber 0327

MR. LORENSEN replied that he does not know if he can
characterize [what the trustees intention may or may not have
been], beyond the fact that this |anguage was inserted at the
request of the board. He told the nenbers that he does not want
to guess as to what the board was trying to do. If this
anendnent were adopted as it is now, he said he would interpret
this as a statenent of a policy goal wth respect to the
di stribution the fund.

Number 0239

CO CHAIR VWH TAKER conmented that his interpretation is that it
is a long-term consideration, and a long-term invasion that the
| egi sl ature needs to be very cautious about.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG conmented that he thinks it is inportant
that the intent of this [language] be crystal clear so everyone
under stands what this | anguage neans. He said he believes this
is a lawsuit waiting to happen. If the legislature took a
certain action that was (indisc.) to what the intention was
there could be a constitutional challenge that the |egislature
did not take enough or took too nuch. Represent ati ve Rokeberg
reiterated his concern about this |anguage.

Number 0133

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is concerned as to whether
there is a considerable change legally from the way it was
originally [witten], "may not be appropriated" to "should not
be appropriated.” He pointed out that one is legally actionable
and the other may not be. That is a big difference, he stated.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it is the reverse.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -25- April 25, 2003



COCHAIR WHI TAKER clarified that [Representative G uenberg]
meant "may" would be legally actionable, and "should" would not
be | egal |y actionabl e.

Number 0043

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG commented that aspirational |anguage is
not placed in the constitution; that |anguage is placed in the
preanble of the constitution. Actionable |anguage is placed in
the constitution, he said. M. Guenberg said he believes that
it is the intent to nake this |anguage actionabl e.

MR. LORENSEN responded that he cannot state what the intent was.

[ Not on tape, but reconstructed from the commttee secretary's
| og notes follows.]

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG commented that the word "may" is nore
perm ssive than "shoul d".

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG told the nenbers he wants to see the
| anguage changed so that it is actionable.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that he would like to see the
| anguage and intent [witten] as clearly and consistently as
possi bl e. He said he is concerned about inserting |anguage in
the constitution, and cautioned that the legislature needs to
understand the policy that is chosen.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for M. Cook to work on the
| anguage of the anmendnent.

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Commttee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
8:50 a. m

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 26- April 25, 2003



